
19.0355.02000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/24/2019

Amendment to: Engrossed SB 2156

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $361,800 $371,800

Expenditures $10,000

Appropriations $10,000

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

SB2156 as amended proposes an additional $0.25 fee for every passenger car or pickup truck registration or 
renewal and deposits those fees in a new driver's education fund.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Section 1 imposes an additional fee of $0.25 on each registration or renewal of passenger motor vehicles or pickup 
trucks. This fee is to be deposited in a special driver's education fund which would be administered by the 
Superintendent of Public Instruction for purposes as described in the bill.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

There are approximately 743,600 currently registered passenger and pickup truck vehicles. Under the provisions of 
this bill, the fee will generate approximately $361,800 in revenue the first biennium (net of one time programming 
costs of $10,000) and $371,800 for each subsequent biennium.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

NDDOT would incur one time computer programming costs of approximately $10,000. These costs would be 
deducted from the revenue proceeds prior to distribution to the driver's education fund.



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

NDDOT would require an addition to its appropriation for the 2019-2021 biennium to cover the $10,000 of computer 
programming costs. These costs are not covered under the executive recommended appropriation.

Name: Lindi Michlitsch

Agency: NDDOT

Telephone: 328-2734

Date Prepared: 01/25/2019



19.0355.01000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/07/2019

Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2156

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $1,477,200 $1,487,200

Expenditures $10,000

Appropriations $10,000

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties

Cities

School Districts

Townships

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

SB2156 proposes an additional $1 fee for every passenger car or pickup truck registration or renewal and deposits 
those fees in a new driver's education fund.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

Section 1 imposes an additional fee of $1 on each registration or renewal of passenger motor vehicles or pickup 
trucks. This fee is to be deposited in a special driver's education fund which would be administered by the NDDOT 
for purposes as described in the bill.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

There are approximately 743,600 registered passenger motor vehicles and pickup trucks at the present time. A one 
dollar fee on each vehicle would generate $743,600 per year or $1,487,200 per biennium.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

NDDOT would incur one time computer programming costs of approximately $10,000. These costs would be 
deducted from the revenue proceeds prior to distribution to the driver's education fund. 

NDDOT would also incur staffing and operating costs related to the administration of the driver's education fund. At 
this time we don't know the level of staffing and other costs that would be necessary to support this program. 
Therefore, we cannot provide detail for those additional expenditures.



C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

NDDOT would require an addition to its appropriation for the 2019-2021 biennium to cover the $10,000 of computer 
programming costs. These costs are not covered under the executive recommended appropriation.

Name: Shannon L. Sauer

Agency: NDDOT

Telephone: 328-4375

Date Prepared: 01/11/2019
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2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Education Committee 
Sheyenne River Room, State Capitol 

SB 2156 
1/14/2019 

30747 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Lynn Wolf 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to registration fees for motor vehicles and a driver's education fund; and to 
provide a continuing appropriation. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att. # 1 – Senator Schaible; Att. #2 – Glenn Jackson; 
Att. #3 - Jim Keller 

 
Vice-Chairman Fors: Hearing for SB 2156 is open. Senator Schaible. 
 
Senator Schaible, District 36: I am here to introduce SB 2156. The bill provides a funding 
source to recruit driver’s instructors and provide for equipment and supplies to maintain an 
effective driver’s education curriculum.  
 
Senator Davison: Is there a fiscal note that goes with this bill? 
 
Senator Schaible: You are correct and this bill will need to be referred to the Appropriations 
committee.  
 
Jim Keller: See Att. # 1. The reason the bill was drafted was we are struggling to get drivers 
education teachers. We want to retain and recruit teachers and one of the biggest ways to 
retain them is to provide for them their education when they go to conferences and some 
schools are having to cut budgets and instructors can only go every other year. We are 
struggling to get new teachers – it requires 12 more hours. It also takes time away from their 
family and many teachers don’t feel they need the hassle of a driving with a 14-year-old kid 
trying to kill me. I had six kids out of 25 that didn’t even know how to fill gas out of 25 or how 
to run the pump. We live in ND – we know the importance of driving safely – most of you 
probably drive here to get here. This is one life skill that we use over and over again. DOT 
had a survey out that requiring drivers ed for licensure and incorporating novice drivers about 
driving risk. That was one of the priorities for safety strategies. To get more people to get into 
drivers ed instructors, I thought it a good idea to pay the credit cost and they have to provide 
the school district five more years of instruction. If I could get 10 teachers every two years, 
that is a big step. We are losing about 4 teachers a year through retirement. Last year we 
got two new drivers ed teachers. The resources for drivers ed are not coming cheap. When 
a driver’s ed teacher gets into the automobile with a student, there is a lot of liability there. 
Drivers ed cars should have cameras in them. In the last three years, we have had four 



Senate Education Committee  
SB 2156 
1/14/19 
Page 2  
   

drivers ed accidents with drivers in them. One of them involving a death. Cameras won’t 
prevent the accident, but it will help with the liability. Also, I use the video with my students 
so they see what they have done wrong. Everything is shown. When we stop I show the 
video to them. The in car camera is not just about liability, it is also education. There are a 
lot of other expenses -  gas, brakes, signs for the car, etc. If every school is equipped with 
the needed materials the cost of approximately $600 for a single car. This is what it would 
cost per year (he put four quarters on the table). It’s less than ten cents per month. For every 
noncommercial driver it would actually cost about eight cents per month – but I didn’t want 
to cut a penny in half.  
 
Chairman Schaible: How do you see that pool of money divvied to the driver ed programs?  
 
Jim Keller: To reimburse the schools for the equipment that is foremost. Reimbursing and 
retaining teachers to be able to attend conferences course fees is also important. I wasn’t 
sure how the funding would be worked out – I don’t know if it should be through Department 
of Public Instruction or DOT. We need about 10 teachers every two years. The costs continue 
to raise as we need to drive further to take the tests as the rural office have been shut down, 
gas prices, etc.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Other testimony in favor of. Agency testimony.  
 
Glen Jackson, Director of the Driver’s License Division for DOT: The bill is intended to create 
a driver’s education fund. The department does not oppose the idea, but we are concerned 
about the process established. The bill creates a new fund with management levied on the 
DOT. The department does not have the resources or manage this fund nor an understanding 
of the needs of the Department of Public Instruction to support these areas of instruction. We 
recommend the responsibility to administer the program be transferred fully to Department 
of Public Instruction for their use and management.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Questions. 
 
Senator Davison: I had some concerns with the bill and oversight. The word director in the 
bill refers to whom? Someone in your department or Department of Public Instruction? 
 
Glenn Jackson: See attachment #2. The bill is in department 39, so it would be in the 
director of transportation.  
 
Chairman Schaible: Other questions. 
 
Joe Kolosky, Deputy Director of the Department of Public Instruction Office of School 
Approval and Opportunity: Superintendent of Public Instruction Baesler is for operating 
this program under our department. 
 
Chairman Schaible: You didn’t see that as a problem – how you would delegate that?  
 
Joe Kolosky: No, that would not be an issue, we do this kind of work with several grants 
and programs.  
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Chairman Schaible: Other questions. Thank you. Any other agency testimony? Testimony 
in opposition to the bill?  With that, we will close the hearing. 
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Education Committee 
Sheyenne River Room, State Capitol 

SB 2156 
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31219 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk Signature Lynn Wolf 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to registration fees for motor vehicles and a driver's education fund; and to 
provide a continuing appropriation. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att. #1-Amendment 

 
Chairman Schaible: SB 2156. Senator Davison you have an amendment?  
 
Senator Davison: Yes, Mr. Chairman. LC # 19.0355.01001.  The intent is to lower the fee 
from one dollar to twenty-five cents. It will also replace the word director to superintendent of 
public instruction.  
 
Senator Davison: Motion to adopt the amendment. 
 
Senator Fors: Second 
 
Chairman Schaible: Other discussion. 
 
Roll call vote 7 Yeas, 0 Nays, 0 Absent. 
   
Amendment to SB 2156 passes. 
 

Senator Davison: Mr. Chairman, I move to pass SB 2156 as amended and refer to 
Appropriations.  
 
Senator Fors: Second.  
 
Roll Call vote 7 Yeas, 0 Nays, 0 Absent. 
 
Motion Carries.  
 
Senator Davison will carry the bill. 



19.0355.01001 
Title.02000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Davison 

January 16, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2156 

Page 1, line 11, replace "one dollar" with "twenty-five cents" 

Page 1, line 13, replace "director" with "superintendent of public instruction" 

Page 1, line 21, replace "director" with "superintendent of public instruction" 

Page 2, line 2, after "department" insert "of public instruction" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0355.01001 
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Insert LC: 19.0355.01001 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2156: Education Committee (Sen. Schaible, Chairman) recommends AMENDMENTS 

AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS and BE 
REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (7 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT 
AND NOT VOTING). SB 2156 was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar. 

Page 1, line 11, replace "one dollar'' with "twenty-five cents" 

Page 1, line 13, replace "director'' with "superintendent of public instruction" 

Page 1, line 21, replace "director'' with "superintendent of public instruction" 

Page 2, line 2, after "department" insert "of public instruction" 

Renumber accordingly 
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2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Education Committee 
Coteau A Room, State Capitol 

SB 2156 
3/6/2019 

33332 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 Committee Clerk:  Bev Monroe 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 
A bill relating to registration fees for motor vehicles and a driver’s education fund; and to 
provide a continuing appropriation 

Minutes:  Attachment 1, 2, 3 

Chairman Owens:  Opened the hearing on SB 2156. 

Sen. Don Schaible: (Attachment 1)  

Chairman Owens:  Any questions from the committee? 

Rep. Andrew Marschall:  When it says ‘equipment’, what does that mean? 

Sen. Don Schaible:  It could be the assistant brakes on the right side, it could be the camera 
to record what they are doing.  I think Mr. Keller will explain that.  Sometimes they use records 
to show what they did.  It could be leasing a car, paying for the car, equipment for that car, 
etc.   

Chairman Owens:  Any further questions? 

Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Including the non-public schools, do we normally 
provide them with the driver’s education course work.  How does that work? 

Sen. Don Schaible:  Part of what we do through schools is that we have a per pupil payment 
that is part of the factors for driver’s ed. if it’s done through the school.   They do get paid 
through the state for that.  I don’t think that is included in the private education.  As far as the 
association goes, the drivers and others still can do that sort of thing.   

Rep. Pat D. Heinert:  What about the $.25 charge?  I don’t ever recall writing a check for 
Motor Vehicle registration that isn’t an even dollar amount.   

Sen. Schaible:  We thought $1.00 was a little excessive and the fiscal note was over $1M.  
This is at $378,00.  We thought $1.00 would be excessive with the funding to start out with 
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and would be a deterrent in passing the bill.  By lowering the price, it gives the bill a better 
chance of survival.   

Rep. Pat D. Heinert:  My concern is that people are used to writing out even dollar amounts 
that they will miss the $.25 and we will cause headaches for the DOT.    

Sen. Schaible:  If it’s a problem we will probably hear about it, if not, whatever.  If it’s worthy 
enough to move this forward and we think it’s worth funding this fund, then we can amend it 
and we will talk about it.  We thought this was important enough to move it along and keep it 
alive. 

Chairman Owens:   Anyone else in support of SB 2156? 

Jim Keller, President, ND Drivers Education Instructors: (Attachment 2) I was looking 
at ways to keep the teachers in the program with added costs for the things that go into the 
driver’s ed program (brakes, cameras, etc.).   That would bring the cost down for the teachers, 
parents, etc.  Right now, we are losing teachers and I am trying to find ways to reinvent the 
wheel and make it so smaller school programs can survive.  I thought about putting it on the 
license plate renewal fees.   

Chairman Owens: Any questions from the committee? 

Rep. Daniel Johnston:  How much does it cost for a parent to enroll their child? 

Jim Keller:  In most programs, it’s $100-$200 in the school system.  The state reimburses 
$75 on $100.  They take out money because you charge for it, but there is a certain amount 
that they pay you back, they prorate it for that.  They take it out of the funding. 

Rep. Daniel Johnston:  Instead of making this a collectively funded thing, should a parent 
be accountable for this?  To raise the fees for the parent, enroll their child in? 

Jim Keller:  If you raise the fees, the state funding goes down.   They have it prorated. 

Chairman Owens:  Any further questions? 

Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Today, how does the non-public school drivers 
training work versus public school?  Is there a variant? 

Jim Keller:  Private schools are not funded by DPI.  They don’t get the funding for it, but their 
instructors still have to go to the classes for the two credits to get it back.  To date, I don’t 
know of any private schools that actually are involved in drivers ed programs.   

Rep. Michelle Strinden:  I believe Oak Grove Lutheran School provides it.  

Jim Keller:  Yes, but they are not with our driver’s education program, so I don’ t know how 
they work it. 

Chairman Owens:  Any questions from the committee? 
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Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:    Following up on Rep. Heinert’s $1 vs. $.25, I 
am feeling the same way he is.  The dollar with a sunset on the bill or how much do you think 
you’re going to spend and keep in reserve, etc.   If you could put those numbers together I 
think that would be helpful.     

Jim Keller:   I figured all the costs (brake, camera, mirror, conference costs and in-class 
materials) that every instructor has.  It would $1,195 per school per class.  You realize that 
you have 100 schools involved with 125 teachers, but we have more than that in our larger 
cities (Fargo, Grand Forks, Dickinson, Minot and Williston).  They have multiple teachers for 
multiple programs, but we only list them as one school.  For equipment alone without the 
books (not including gas, car lease, etc.) is $119,500.   To enlist ten teachers in a two-year 
period, if you just gave them the $3,500 to recover the cost that they would spend for the 
classes, that is $35,000.  Maybe you could have them say that they would work within the 
ND driver’s education program for the next three years.   That’s how we thought it could be 
worked to have them have ‘skin in the game’.   They would be responsible to teach in ND 
whether they switch a school or not for the next three years or pay back a portion.  We are 
looking for money to stop the deficit spending we have and the loss or recruitment of 
teachers.   

Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Essentially the cost is approximately 
$175,00/year? 

Jim Keller:  Without gas, vehicle and everything else, etc. 

Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Would the funding listed here at $.25/$361,800 
cover you?   

Jim Keller:  The car is leased every year and that is the issue with the brake.  A lot of the 
schools buy the car if they can afford it, but not everyone does it that way.   A lot of times 
they buy the vehicle and use it for other things within the school, i.e., students going to 
different programs.  A lot of schools have vans and the kids drive vans.   

Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  That would be for a couple years.  If we did this 
annually, there is no sunset on this particular bill?  You would, in five years, have $1.5 and 
spend about half of that.   

Jim Keller:  There are a lot of costs I didn’t include like fuel costs.  You would be surprised 
at the numbers you get back with the fuel costs. 

Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Reflective in these numbers are the potential for 
additional funding for the schools that are providing the service.    

Chairman Owens:  Any further questions? 

Rep. Ron Guggisberg:   You said there are different programs within different school 
districts and schools like Oak Grove don’t get any money currently.   Would they under this 
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bill and how many of the programs be covered under this bill?  Would it be all of them or all 
of them with certain exceptions?  

Jim Keller:  There is really not an exception.  Could you help me out (referring to Rep. 
Strinden)? 

Rep. Michelle Strinden:  I don’t know.  I know that provide direct driver’s ed in the summer, 
but my children have not participated in that program, but they do provide it for kids in the 
summertime. 

Jim Keller:  I’m looking to get that stuff that every school needs (brake, camera, etc.). Liability 
issues are so great.  The in-car cameras take out the he said/she said issue and it tells you 
what happened.   We don’t have any programs within our organization in the state, but I’m 
not disallowing for it.  If they need it, they should have it.   

Chairman Owens:  Any further questions from the committee?   I have a small program with 
the $3,500 for the teachers continuing ed, since there are 19 other certificates that are 
requiring continuing ed.  When you said earlier that there is no other teacher that has to do 
that, there are 19 other certificates. 

Jim Keller:  We are the only ones that every two years have to have it in driver’s ed credits 
in driver’s education.  We are the only ones. 

Chairman Owens:  Title I reading requires it, Title I math requires it, but they are five years 
for their certificates, but they need six hours.   

Jim Keller:  Every teacher needs six hours, but in driver’s ed it has to be specific to driver’s 
education. 

Chairman Owens:  That’s what Title I math is. 

Jim Keller:  I believe that it is only the principals or superintendents, it is library technician 
or something, the computer one.  They are the only ones that are required to be on the six 
credit hours. 

Chairman Owens:  It was my understanding that you needed six credit hours to maintain 
your teachers license and then six credit hours for Title I reading.   

Jim Keller:   Every teacher needs that. 

Chairman Owens:  I mean twice, so it would be twelve credit hours for the five years. 

Jim Keller:  Yes, you can call Rebecca Pitkin at ESPB and should could answer that. 

Chairman Owens:  Any further questions?  Others in support? 

Russ Ziegler, NDCEL: (Attachment 3) 
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Chairman Owens:  Any further questions from the committee?   Others in support? 

ElRoy Burkle, NDSOS/Alexis Baxley, NDSBA:  I am in support of this bill and also, I have 
permission from Alexis Baxley to support this bill.  The only question I would have to research 
is to make sure the money that goes back to the schools does not get counted into that ‘in 
lieu’ because then you have actually defeated the purpose of the $.25 per plate.   

Chairman Owens:  Any others in support?  Anyone opposed?  Any neutral testimony for SB 
2156? 

Joe Kolosky, Deputy Director of School Approval and Opportunity with DPI:  During 
the regular school year there are 11 schools that offer drivers education, five of those offer 
both regular and in the summer.  There are 132 programs in the summer.  Summer 
enrollment last year was 3,763 students and during school the enrollment was 1,316 
students.   

Chairman Owens:   You heard the question about 75/25?  Is that because it is counted as 
tuition or do you know that?      

Joe Kolosky:  Adam Tescher would be able to get those figures for you. 

Chairman Owens:  In this program, do you currently provide anything for private schools? 

Joe Kolosky:  We do not provide for private schools as they are funded on their own. 

Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Annually, what is spent for driver’s ed by DPI? 

Joe Kolosky:  I’ll get that information for you. 

Chairman Owens:  Any further questions from the committee? 

Rep. Dennis Johnson:  This is probably a question that is more for the department.  When 
you register a vehicle, is there a machine set up for $.25.  It’s always rounded off.   

Chairman Owens:  Any further questions?  Any neutral testimony?   We will close the 
hearing on SB 2156. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to registration fees for motor vehicles and a driver’s education fund; and to 
provide a continuing appropriation 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Owens:   Is there any discussion on SB 2156? 
 
Rep. Pat D. Heinert:  I think we need to support driver’s education.  I like the idea of them 
talking about the new equipment in the vehicles and making sure that equipment is updated 
and the vehicles are being maintained so there aren’t students driving with inadequate 
equipment.   I was disappointed to hear that some schools are buying vans with their driver’s 
education so they can utilize it for other things.   I would not support this bill paying $3,500 
towards their continuing education.  I think that is their own responsibility as I think Driver’s 
Education teaching is a separate contract on top of their normal teaching contract.  If they 
are that short on driver’s ed instructors, I think that they would be covering themselves in 
how they are collecting their fees and making sure their education is paid for.   
 
Chairman Owens:   It says any monies deposited in the fund must be used for retaining and 
recruiting teachers who provide driver’s ed instruction both in public and non-public schools.  
Reimbursed expenses incurred by public and non-public schools for necessary driver’s ed 
curriculum, materials, supplies and equipment, purchasing equipment necessary for the 
public to improve and effectively maintain the curriculum.  It’s appropriated on a continuous 
basis.  It was a dollar in the Senate and they passed it with a quarter.   
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  I’d like to move a Do Not Pass on SB 2156.  
 
Chairman Owens:  Is there a second? 
 
Rep. Daniel Johnston:  I’ll second it.  
 
Chairman Owens:  Any further discussion? 
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Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  There may be the possibility to amend.  If that 
does happen, Small Schools indicated that the tuition is now being deducted so we would 
want to clarify that.   
 
Chairman Owens:  The money paid by the parents is treated as tuition.  It is being imputed 
at 75%.  We can’t change that because if we do that is just the state picking up the tab in a 
different form.  
 
Rep. Brandy Pyle:  Are school districts required to offer driver’s ed? 
 
Chairman Owens:  I don’t believe so, but I’m not sure.   
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  One issue that someone with his own driving school deals with is 
helping students who can’ t afford this fee.   
 
Chairman Owens:  At a quarter, they still get more money than he claimed they needed and 
what the expenses were, and that it was a continuing basis.  You could also put a sunset on 
it to get them the equipment and then back it off.  You could restrict it from being used for 
continuing education, you could insert in there that it would supplement low income.  We 
can’t right now because we have a Do Not Pass on the bill.  No one can look at amendments 
right now until we get past this motion, unless the motion gets withdrawn. 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  I feel like the state doesn’t have the obligation to teach kids to drive.  
It came about decades ago because it helped teachers who had nothing to do in the summer 
do something.   
 
Rep. Dennis Johnson:  That was my error.  With regulation you cannot get your driver’s 
license till you have had driver’s ed and have to be a certain age to be able to take driver’s 
ed.  There are other laws we have passed to put us in a situation where driver’s ed is required 
to get a driver’s license. 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  Aren’t there private companies that offer driver’s education too? 
 
Rep. Dennis Johnson:  Maybe in the larger cities, but in the country I know students having 
to go thirty miles or more to another school or get in with someone else to get it out of the 
way because of their age to get their license.   
 
Rep. Pat D. Heinert:  If the person is under eighteen years of age they have to have driver’s 
ed to get their license.   
 
Representative Denton Zubke:  Where I live everyone is driving before they are eighteen.  
The other thing that happens is our school no longer provided driver’s ed so I had to take my 
last student 45 miles to a private individual to get driver’s ed and he made exceptions where 
we could come and my son could drive eight hours in a day instead of the typical couple 
hours so we didn’t have to drive the 45 miles quite so many times.  I don’t think this is a bad 
program process to go through and put some funding out there so that they have some 
money for this equipment. 
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Chairman Owens:  When I went to driver’s ed it was a half semester during the school year 
and all the students went through it. 
 
Rep. Pat D. Heinert:  This would be an ideal study resolution but I don’t think it is one for us 
to worry about.  It’s an ideal study resolution for the group of driver’s ed instructors that they 
have their own committee on for them to study and come back with a solid bill next time, not 
just an adventure bill. They are just throwing things out to see what sticks. 
 
Rep. Daniel Johnston:  I’d like to ask Rep. Heinert that under eighteen years old it is 
mandatory or is it under sixteen that it’s mandatory if you want to get your license. 
 
Rep. Pat D. Heinert:  There are two sections to it.  Under sixteen it is mandatory classroom 
and driving and under eighteen it is either classroom or driving.  I know under sixteen it is 
mandatory for both and under eighteen it is mandatory for one of them. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any further questions? 
 
Rep. Brandy Pyle:  I think this is a great idea for innovation education to do it during the 
school year.  Those that turn fourteen earlier in the year can take it at a certain point.  They 
can co-op with other schools.  I think instead of throwing money at it we have to start thinking 
creatively. 
 
Rep. Pat D. Heinert:  We do have a bill coming forth this afternoon that I am carrying that 
changes driver’s ed for those fourteen years of age.  They can be part of it as long as they 
turn fourteen prior to the completion of the course.   
 
Chairman Owens:  Any further discussion? 
 
Rep. Andrew Marschall:  Having the driver’s education class benefits individuals in a variety 
of ways, i.e. insurance premium deductions, etc.   In the bigger cities it is beneficial to have 
these programs, 
 
Rep. Daniel Johnston:  It is a really good program and I think parents should do it.  I question 
as to whether we should ask the people at large to fund the opportunity to attend it for kids 
that aren’t theirs.  I think it is a parental obligation and parents should step up to the plate on 
this.   
 
Chairman Owens:  We have before us SB 2156 for a Do Not Pass motion.   
 
A Roll Call Vote was taken:  Yes  7, No  7, Absent  0.  The Do Not Pass motion fails. 
 
Vice Chairman Cynthia Schreiber-Beck:  Before we make another motion we should see 
if there are some people that want amendments before we build directly onto this bill. 
 
Chairman Owens:  We will close this session of committee work. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A bill relating to registration fees for motor vehicles and a driver’s education fund; and to 
provide a continuing appropriation 
 

Minutes:                                                  

 
Chairman Owens:  What is the committee’s desire? 
 
Representative Denton Zubke:  I will move a Do Not Pass on SB 2156. 
 
Rep. Mary Johnson:  Seconded. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Is there any discussion? 
 
Rep. Ron Guggisberg:  Driving is a necessity, especially in our state and might be the way 
to go, but eventually putting something in the formula to help with the driving school may be 
a good idea. 
 
Chairman Owens:  What we were told was not only for the equipment - but didn’t receive 
information regarding fuel - and fuel, and it was used for the continuing education 
requirements.  All of our teachers have certain amounts on continuing education 
requirements.  Why are we singling them out to help them?  I don’t think this is the vehicle.  
Any further discussion? 
 
Rep. Dennis Johnson:  There is monies in foundation aid for a summer approved driver’s 
ed program. 
 
Chairman Owens:  Any further discussion? 
  
A Roll Call Vote was taken:    Yes,  14, No  0, Absent  0.  A Do Not Pass motion carries.  
Rep. Guggisberg will carry SB 2156. 
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SB 2156 

NORTH DAKOTA SENATE 

STATE CAPITOL 
600 EAST BOULEVARD 

BISMARCK, ND 58505-0360 

COMMITTEES: 

Education, Chairman 
Energy and Natural Resources 

January 14, 2019 

Good morning Senate Education Committee. For the record I am Senator Donald 
Schaible from District 31. I am here to introduce SB 2156 that provides for a funding source to 
recruit driver instructors and equipment or supplies to maintain an efficient driver's education 

rriculum. 

This bill has come to my attention from a patron in my district that is the President of 
the ND Drivers Education Instructors and will testify after me and will be able to provide much 
more information. I will try to answer any of your questions if I can. 
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SENATE EDUCATION COMMITTEE 
January 14, 2019; 10:00 AM; Sheyenne River Room 

North Dakota Department of Transportation 
Dr. Glenn Jackson, Director, Driver's License Division 

SB2156 

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, good morning, my name is Glenn Jackson, 
Director of the Driver's License Division for the North Dakota Department of Transportation 
(DOT). 

Senate Bill 2156 is a bill to create a driver education fund. The department does not oppose the 
idea; however, we are concerned about the process established. 

The bill creates a new fund with management of the uses of the fund levied on_the NDDOT. The 
department does not have resources_ to monitor or manage this fund, nor an understanding of the 
needs of the Department of Public Instruction (DPI) to support these areas of in�tructiOJ?.. 

We recommend that the responsibility to administer this program be transferred fully to DPI, for 
their use and management. 

Mr. Chairman, that concludes my testimony, I would be happy to answer any questions you may 
have . 

f I 
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Jim Keller notes on senate bills 2156, 2157, and 2158 . 

Senate bill 2158 

We have 100 public schools in the state of ND and we have about 125 
Driver's Education Teacher's Licensed in ND. Not all of them teach. We 
have several teachers who are retired, teaching drivers education to 
help out their local community. We have teacher's because of lack of 
funding that are allowed to go to conference every 2 years. To gain 
credit for conference you have to be there Thursday night, Friday all 
day, and Saturday morning until noon, plus write a paper for that one 
credit. Some teachers have to travel after school Thursday and others 
have commitment Saturday, such as coaching baseball ,track, golf, AAU 
wrestling, rodeo and other family commitments. We are getting to be a 
grey haired society. New teachers don't want to take on Driver's 
Education because of summer activities, stress of young driver's, extra 
work load to get accredited, etc. "Amend it to, and attend one driver's 
education conference every three years." 
I am asking for this as a way to help retain highly qualified teachers that 
have a wealth of knowledge and expertise in Drivers Education. 

Senate bill 2157 

Explain the Flasher situation after the teacher had died in an accident 
with student drivers. Her class was in June and she was going to drive 
with two students when they turned 14 in August. That is simply too 
much time between the classroom and behind the wheel to retain the 
information learned and practice it. Graduate 8th grade, how old 12-16 
yrs. of age. Let us make it simple. They must be 14 yrs. of age by the 
completion of the classroom instruction, before the behind the wheel. 
This allows for the student who may turn 14 in the pt few weeks of 
June but puts a cut-off that is identified by age, not the completion of 

• 8th grade. 



• 

• 

• 

S f3 2.15� 

Senate bill 2156 

Explain what will this actually cost, $1.00, 4 quarters per year, less than 
$ .10 per month, actually $.083 cents per month. Less than the cost of 
a cup of coffee from Mcdonalds per year. Who will manage the money, 
DPI. Driving is one life skill that most of us use consistently in ND . You 
probably drove here today. 
Less and less schools are providing the resources to go to training 
opportunities and this expense is becoming more of an out-of-pocket 
expense for the teacher. Liability is an issue, without updating safety 
features for the driver's ed. cars. Simple things such as the newer 
brake on the passenger side. It  allows for easier installment into newer 
models of cars. (2000+). It takes one mechanic about 45 minutes to put 
it in where the older brakes take 2 mechanics about 2 hrs. Plus it is 
considered a safer brake with newer models and does less damage to 
the vehicle if a leased unit. One bolt is all that is required for the foot 
petal of the brake. Cameras to not only record what is done in and out 
of the car, but also can be used for teachable moments with the 
students. It allows instant playback so the student driver can actually 
see what they did wrong. Signage for the vehicle. Extra mirrors for the 
teacher. Not only expenses for the car but classroom expenses to 
update DVD's, in-class instructional materials. Gaining new teachers to 
replace those that retire or move. It costs about $3500 just for the 
credits to be able to teach driver's education. Not including registration 
and University fees. I would like to see 10 new teachers in two years. 
Pay for their credits and then get a 5 year dedicated contract to teach 
at least that long in Driver's education. In the past year alone we had 4 
teachers retire and only added 2 new teachers. We are deficit spending 
if we were a fiscal account. 
So what are the actual costs . 

I J J 'l �J 'i 
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100 schools, 125 teachers 
Brake-$350 each 
Camera-$200 each 
Mirror and Signage- $75 
Conference Costs- $125 registration, motel $175, meals $70, credit $50, 
travel varies $25-$75 
In class materials $100 
Plus the book or course-on-line fee. 
How can we figure gas expense it will cost according to how close you 
are to a major town in ND that has OMV testing, so that your students 
can practice in that place. 
This is not looking at the 6 hrs. driving time, 6 hrs. observation time, 
and 30 hrs. of classroom time and the prep time that is required to 
prepare for the classes . 
Without these and only doing the top 6 lines with pricing include it 
comes to $1195 multiplied by 100 schools that is $119,500 and that 
isn't including the bigger schools that have multiple teachers and cars. 
10 new teachers times $3500 =$35000 

How many non-commercial vehicles are licensed each year in ND? 
466,614 in 2018 according to NDDOT website. 

Driver's education in the summer is pro-rated by reimbursement from 
the state. Most driver education programs do not recover the costs. 
The schools have the programs to help our students learn this 
important life skill and try to promote safer communities. What value 
are you going to place on a life saved by defensive driving learned in 
driver's education . 
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19.0355.01001 
Title.02000 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Davison 

January 16, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2156 

Page 1, line 11, replace "one dollar" with "twenty-five cents" 

Page 1, line 13, replace "director" with "superintendent of public instruction" 

Page 1, line 21, replace "director" with "superintendent of public instruction" 

Page 2, line 2, after "department" insert "of public instruction" 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 19.0355.01001 



Senator Donald Schaible 
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NORTH DAKOTA SENATE 

STATE CAPITOL 
600 EAST BOULEVARD 

BISMARCK, ND 58505-0360 

COMMITTEES: 

Education, Chairman 
Energy and Natural Resources 

March 6, 2019 

Good afternoon Chairman Owens and House Education Committee members. For the 
record I am Senator Donald Schaible from District 31. I am here to introduce SB 2156 that 
provides for a funding source to recruit driver education instructors and equipment and/or 

.pplies to maintain an efficient driver's education curriculum. 

This bill in its original form ask for $1 added to the motor vehicle registration and that a 
fund be established in the DOT. The Senate Education Committee thought this was a little too 
excessive and reduced the amount to $.25 per registration and suggested that the Department 
of Public Instruction would be a better home to place this fund. 

The fiscal note estimates 743,600 vehicles would generate $371,800 with $10,000 of 
that being used the first year to provide for software updates to address this fund. 

Again, this bill came to my attention from the President of the ND Drivers Education 
Instructors, a constituent of my district, and will testify after me and will be able to provide 
much more information. I will try to answer any of your questions if I can . 

• 



Senate b i l l  2 15 6  

Exp l a i n  wh a t  w i l l  t h i s  a ctu a l l y cost, $ 1 . 00, 4 q u a rte rs pe r yea r, l ess t ha n  

$ . 10 pe r  m onth ,  a ctu a l ly $ .083 cents pe r  m o nth . Less t h a n the cost of 

a c u p  of coffee from M cdon a l d s  p e r  yea r .  Who  w i l l  m a n a ge the m oney, 

D P I .  D r iv i ng  is o ne  l ife s k i l l  t h a t  m ost of us u se  con s i ste nt l y  i n  N D  . Yo u  

p roba b ly d rove he re today .  

Less a n d  l ess s choo l s  a re p rovi d i ng t he  reso u rces  to go to  t ra i n i n g  

oppo rtu n i t ies  a nd t h is expense i s  becom i ng m ore o f  a n  o ut-of-pocket  

expense  fo r t he  tea che r . L i a b i l i ty i s  a n  i ss u e, w i tho ut u pd a t i ng sa fety 

fea tu res fo r th e d r ive r' s  e d .  ca rs . S im p l e  th i ngs s u c h  a s  t he  n ewe r 

b ra ke on  the  pa ssenge r  s i de .  I t  a l l ows fo r e a s i e r  i n sta l l men t  i n to n ewer  

mode l s  of ca rs .  { 2000+) . I t  ta kes one  m ech a n ic a bo ut 45 m i n utes to pu t  

i t  i n  whe re the  o l d e r  b ra kes ta ke 2 m echa n i cs a bou t  2 h rs .  P l u s i t  i s  

cons i d e red  a s a fe r  b ra ke w i th  n ewe r mode l s  a nd d oes l ess  d a m age to  

the  ve h i c l e  i f  a l e a sed u n it .  One  bo l t  i s  a l l  t h a t  i s  req u i red  fo r t he  foot 

peta l of the b ra ke .  Ca m e ra s  to n ot o n ly reco rd wha t  i s  d o n e  in a nd ou t  

o f  t he  ca r, b u t  a l so  ca n b e  used  fo r tea c ha b l e  moments w i th  t he  

stud e n ts .  I t  a l l ows i nsta n t  p l ayba c k  so  t he  stu d e n t  d r ive r ca n a ctu a l ly 

see what they d id wrong .  S i gnage  fo r the  ve h i c l e .  Extra m i r ro rs for t he  

tea che r .  No t  o n ly expenses fo r the  ca r bu t  c l a ss room expenses  to 

u pda te DVD' s, i n - c l a ss i n st ruct i o n a l m ate r i a l s .  G a i n i ng new tea c h e rs to 

rep l a ce th ose that ret i re o r  m ove . I t  costs a bo ut $ 3 500 j u st fo r t h e  

cred its t o  be  a b l e  t o  tea c h  d r i ve r' s  ed uca t i o n .  N ot i n c l u d i n g  reg i st ra t io n 

a n d  U n ive rs ity fees .  I wou ld l i ke to see 10 n ew tea che rs i n  two yea rs . 

P ay  fo r t he i r  c re d i ts a nd t hen  get a 5 yea r ded ica ted con t ra ct to tea ch  

a t  l e a st t h a t  l o ng  i n  D r ive r' s  e d u ca t i o n .  I n  t he  p a st yea r a lo n e  we h ad  4 

tea c he rs ret i re a nd o n ly a dded  2 new tea che rs .  We a re d e fi c i t  s pend i ng 

if we were a f i sca l a ccou nt .  
So what  a re t he  a ctu a l costs .  

CD 



100 schoo l s, 1 2 5  tea c h e rs 

B ra ke-$350  e a c h  

Ca me ra -$200 e a c h  

M i r ror  a nd  S i gn age - $75  

Confe re n ce Costs- $125  reg i st ra t ion ,  m ote l $ 175 ,  mea l s  $70 ,  c red it $50, 

trave l va r i e s  $ 25 -$ 7 5  

I n  c l a ss m ate r i a l s  $ 100 

P l u s t he  book  or  cou rse-on - l i n e  fee .  

H ow ca n we  f ig u re g a s  expense  i t  w i l l  cost a cco rd i ng t o  h ow c l o se  you 

a re to a m aj o r  town in  N D  that  has  O MV test i ng, so that  you r  stu d en ts 

ca n p ra ct i ce  i n  t h a t  p l a ce .  

Th i s  i s  n ot l ook i ng  a t  t h e  6 h rs .  d r i v i ng  t ime, 6 h rs .  obse rvat i o n  t im e, 

a nd 30  h rs .  of c l a ss room  t i m e  a n d  t he  p rep  t ime  t h at i s  req u i red  to  

p repa re fo r the  c l a sses .  

W i thout  th ese a n d  o n ly d o i ng t he  top 6 l i n es w i th  p r i c i ng  i n c l u d e  i t  

com es to $ 1 195  m u l t i p l i ed  by 100 schoo l s  tha t  i s  $ 1 19 ,500 a n d  tha t  

i s n ' t  i n c l u d i ng the  b igge r s choo l s  tha t  have m u l t i p l e  tea c he rs a n d  ca rs . 

10 new tea c h e rs t i m es $3500 =$35000 

H ow m a ny no n-co m m e rc i a l ve h i c l es a re l i censed each yea r i n  N D? 

466, 6 14 i n  20 18 a ccord i ng to N D DOT webs ite . 

D r ive r' s ed uca t i on  i n  t h e  s u m m e r  i s  p ro-rated by re i m b u rsem e nt from 

the  state . M ost d r i ve r  ed u ca t ion  p rog rams  d o  not recove r t h e  costs . 

The s choo l s  h a ve t h e  p rog ra m s  to h e l p  o u r  studen ts l e a r n  t h is 

i m porta n t  l i fe s k i l l  a n d t ry to p romote safe r  com m u n it i e s .  Wha t  va l u e  

a re you g o i n g  t o  p l a ce o n  a l i fe s aved b y  d efen s ive d r iv i n g  l e a rned  i n  

d r ive r' s ed u ca t i o n .  

@ 



M S U  - R e q u i r e m e n t s  to C e r t i fy  In N D  

Minot State 
U N I V E R S I TY 

S 6  J 1 5b  

3 -b - t 'f  
j_L 

Be seen .  Be heard .  

Driver and Traffic Safety Education 

Req u i rements to Certify in N D  

Licensu re requ i rements for d river education  teachers i n  the state o f  North Dakota 

The Education Standards and Pract ices Board is the agency that is respons ib le  for teache r  l icens i ng  in North Dakota. To 

get a d river education minor equivalency endorsement  on your  teaching license v i sit this page and  print a copy of the 

app l i cat ion form:  D rivers Educat ion M inor  Eg u iva lencY. Endorsement form 

*For  i nfo rmat ion in regard to teacher  l i censu re in any state othe r  than North Dakota , contact the Department of Pub l ic 

I nstruct ion in that state . 

Recommended Courses 

The d river education  teacher requ i rements vary from state to state . We recommend the fo l lowi ng  b lock cons ist i ng  of ten 

semeste r hours .  Th is  b lock wi l l  mee t the credential requ i rements i n  most states .  

DTS 2 3 0  - Dr iver and  Traffic Safety Education  ( 3  semester hours)  

DTS 230 i s  an i ntrod uct ion to  d river and traffic safety educati on .  Th i s  cou rse t rain s  the  prospective i nstructor to  

teach the classroom port ion of d river education .  

DTS 350 - Advanced Dr iv i ng  (3  semester hours )  

Th i s  cou rse train s  t he  p rospective i nstructor t o  develop and  teach i n -car lessons .  Advanced d riv i ng  teaches 

prospective teachers how to improve the d riving sk i l l s ,  percept io n ,  dec is ion-maki ng sk i l l s ,  and general d rivi ng  ab i l i ty 

of their students .  

DTS 260 - Teenage Dr iv i ng  Behavior  Problems (2 semester hours )  

Th is  i s  a cou rse that exam ines current l i te ratu re on  teenage  d riv ing behavio r  i n  o rde r  to  p repare potential d river 

education teachers to teach good dec is ion-maki ng  sk i l l s  to young d rivers . 

DTS 450 - Organ izati on ,  Adm i n istration ,  & Superv is ion  of Traffic Safety Education  (2  semester hours )  

Th is  cou rse covers how to organ ize and schedu le a d river education class .  I t  also i nc l udes  study i n  the  h i story of  the 

automob i le  and d rive r education . The cou rse exam ines cu rrent  d river educat ion prob lems .  Topics i nc lude :  reporting 

procedu res  as requ i red by state offices. Prerequisite : DTS 230 .  This prerequis ite can be waived wi th  the permiss ion 

of the i nstructor. 

h t  t p s  ://www. m i n ot  s t a  t e u .  ed u/d r i ve  red/to-ce r t i f y - i n  - n d .  s h t  m I 
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YOUNG DRIVERS 

In the United States , the fatal crash rate per mile driven for young 

drivers 1 6  to 1 9  years of age is nearly 3 t imes the rate for d rivers 

20 years old and older (Insurance Institute for H ighway Safety 

Highway Loss Data Institute , 201 8) .  Motor vehicle crashes are 

a lead ing cause of teen death with the highest risk during the 

first 6 months of l icensure .  Young drivers are over-represented in 

serious crashes because of their lack of maturity lead ing to risky 

driving hab its and thei r  i nexperience i n  recogniz ing and ski l lfu l ly 

respond ing to hazards. Young drivers tend to overestimate their 

d riving abi l ity and underestimate the dangers on the road . 

On North Dakota roadways, there were 480 serious crashes 

result ing in 601 serious inj u ries between 201 2 and 201 6 i n  which 

the crash i nvolved a driver between the ages of 1 4  and 20. This 

is an average of 1 20 serious i njur ies per year and accounted for 

nearly 1 8% of all serious injuries dur ing the 5-year study period . 

H igh l ights from the most recent crasl1 data (201 2 -201 6) 

(NDDOT, 201 7) i nclude: 

• Majority of serious inj u ries involving a young d river occurred on 

rural roads (68%) on state (32%) and local road (36%) systems. 

• Hal f of young dr iver-related ser ious injuries are s ing le-vehicle 

type (51 %) and more often i nvolved a vehicle rol lover (55%) and 

an angle crash (27%) . 

Priority Safety Strategies 

To increase safety measures to reduce Young Driver crashes, the 

fol l owing strategies should be implemented : 

• Enforce seat be l t  use for a l l  passengers in al l seating positions. 

• Enact primary seat belt legislation that Includes primary 

enforcement of seat belt use for a l l  passengers, of a l l  ages, I n  a l l  

seating posit ions (Policy). 

• Strengthen fines/penalties for speed violations (Policy}. 

• Strengthen enforcement of underage drinking and driving .  

• Implement hands-free cel l phone law to a id in the detection and 

enforcement of d istracted drivi ng (Policy). 

• Restrict passengers for 6 months for a l l  novice drivers under the 

age of 1 8  (Policy}. 

• Extend nighttime driving restriction to 6 months for al l novice 

drivers under the age of 1 8  (Policy}. 

• Implement a pol icy requir ing a min imum age of 1 5  (or 1 6) for 

leamer's permit (Policy}. 

• Implement a pol icy requir ing a min imum age of 1 7  to qual ify for 

a ful l ,  unrestricted l icense (Policy). 

• Require parent education as a driver education c lassroom 

component (Policy). 

• Require classroom education for l icensure and Incorporate 

educating novice drivers about drivi ng risks (Policy). 

• Young drivers ages 1 4, 1 5 , 1 6 , and 1 7  accounted 

for 38% of young driver serious injur ies. Drivers 1 8 , 

1 9 , and 20 were i nvolved in the largest n umber of 

crashes at 62%. 

Figure 5-6. Young Driver Fatality and Serious Injury History 

• Young driver ser ious injuries more often occurred 

dur ing the summer months (34%) on d ry roads 

(78%) and dur ing dayl ight condit ions (60%) . 

• Unbelted occupants (48%) , speeding (42%), and 

driver impai rment (24%) were key contributors to the 

seriousness of young driver injuries. 
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SB 2 156 - Testimony i n  Support 
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Good afternoon Cha i rman Owens and  members of the House Education Comm ittee, I stand  

before you today i n  su pport of  SB  2 156 .  

We fee l  that uti l i z i ng a $ .25  fee on passenger motor veh ic les and p ickup truck registrat ions i s  a 

wonderfu l way of support ing the Drive r 's Ed ucation cou rses i n  North Da kota ' s  pub l i c  and non­

pub l ic i n stitut ions .  We a lso supported th i s  legis l ation  with the  i n it i a l  figure of $1/ passenger 

motor veh ic le  and p icku p truck regi strat ions .  Ut i l i z ing these fu nds  for reta i n i ng and recru it ing 

teachers, re imbu rs ing expenses i ncu rred to schools for Dr iver 's  Educat ion, and for the 

pu rchas ing of necessa ry equ ipment wou ld take some of the  fi na nci a l  bu rden off of the schools 

and loca l tax-payers . As written th i s  b i l l  wou ld  br ing i n  approximately $361,800. These fu nds  

wou ld  be granted to pub l ic and non-pub l i c  schools for the i r  Drivers Education  p rograms .  Havi ng  

these fu nds  ava i l ab l e  wi l l  he lp  keep the p rice down for the pa rents/gua rd i ans  of  the students 

i nvo lved in the p rogram .  

We  recommend  a Do  Pass on SB 2156 and  I wi l l  stand for a ny  quest ions .  

NDCEL is the strongest unifying voice representing a n d  supporting administrators a n d  educational leaders in pursuit o f  qual ity 
education for all students in North Dakota .  

(!) 
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